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The structures of Fort Tejon are basically of adobe or are wood-framed. They are rectangular in, shape,
with wooden-framed gable roofs using a mixture of mortise and tenon joint construction and nailed lathing
to make a ceiling. The lath and furring strips were then plastered with a burnt lime putty plaster. The
roofs were shingled either with San Francisco Bay area redwood or with local pine. In the adobe
buildings, the floors of planks rested on joists inserted into the adobe and pinned in place with wooden
pins. Either civilian contractors or soldier-laborers supplied the adobe bricks. Both civilian employees
and extra-duty soldiers employed by the Quartermaster Department performed all the remaining labor,
such as masonry, carpentry, painting, etc. Nailing planks to the wooden frames probably finished the
wooden structures. A government sawmill installed on modern-day Mount Pinos supplied lumber. All of
the structures rested on stone foundations.

While few contemporary sketches of Fort Tejon exist. The one above was made by Brevet Major E. D.
Townsend in October, 1855. In February 1859, Colonel Joseph K. F. Mansfield, Department of the
Inspector General, visited Fort Tejon for a bi-annual inspection. His inspection report was accompanied
by several sketch maps that showed to officials in Washington what was the basic layout of Fort Tejon
and the surrounding countryside. The map, not drawn to scale by Colonel Mansfield, is reproduced on
page. The Fort Tejon Map is updated to 1860 and numbered to correspond to the following building
descriptions.

1. Officer's Quarters. Site of an officer's adobe house, which was apparently constructed in 1855-56.
The structure was badly damaged in the January 1857, earthquake and subsequently dismantled. All that
remains of the building is a line of foundation stones along the front of the structure. These stones are a
schist--like metamorphic typical of the rough-quarried stones used throughout the garrison area. The
remaining stones are almost flush with the soil surface. The identification of this structure is based on the
Mansfield Map.

2. Kitchen. At least four of the structures in the garrison area at Fort Tejon had associated detached
structures used as kitchens. Built at the same time as the house noted above, this structure was also
damaged in January 1857, and taken down. The only evidence of the detached kitchen associated with
structure 1 is a low ridge of earths about 70 feet south of the front foundation line of structure 1.

3. Headquarters and Band. This adobe building, built in 1855-56, was originally used as officer's
quarters and open, in late 1856, converted to an office for regimental headquarters and the regimental
band. Intending to return the structure to officer's quarters, the post commanding officer ordered the
construction of new band quarters and an adjutant's office during the year, 1859-60. It is uncertain whether
"this move ever took place. A ridge averaging 18 inches high and about 3 feet wide along the front side
toward the parade ground identifies building 3. Foundation stones similar to those noted for structure 1
can be seen protruding from this ridge. Such stones can also be seen along the sides of the building with a

low soil ridge along the rear. This structure is noted on the Mansfield Map and referenced in army
records.

4, Kitchen. A ridge of soil identifies this detached adobe kitchen with occasional foundation stones.
The ridge is in line with the ridge noted for structure 2 and is about 70 feet south of the front ridge of
structure 3. The detached kitchens at Fort Tejon were probably connected with residences by a duckboard
(plank) sidewalk.

S. Officer's Quarters. Although clearly noted on the Mansfield Map, this adobe structure exhibits no
remains of foundations on the surface. The structure location can be determined with fair accuracy based
on the Mansfield Map.
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listed here as an attempt to complete the description of historic Fort Tejon.

33. Guardhouse. A new adobe guardhouse (guardroom and cells) was under construction in 1859. Its
completion date is currently unknown. It was located about 125 yards east of the current visitor center, and
its site is under the northbound lanes of Interstate 5. Portions of the building were removed to the Gorman
area at the turn of this century and were used as part of a creamery or cheese-making structure. Some
years ago, the creamery was demolished and two of the original windows of the guardhouse were given to
the park. This building is shown on both the Mansfield Map and the 1935 survey. There are differences,
however. The 1935 survey recorded the foundation's long axis running east-west rather than north-south,
as noted on the Manstield Map.

34.  Quartermaster's Warehouse. This structure (site approximate), built in 1854 and 1855, was still
unfinished following the earthquake of January, 1857. It needed major repair to one of the gable ends and
was in need of a floor of wooden planks. Colonel Mansfield indicated the structures "supernumerary”, or
extra, in early 1859. It is possible, though not documented, that the post laundresses may have lived there.

35.  Office and Storehouse. This is the site of the office and storehouse of the quartermaster depot of

Fort Tejon. It was apparently constructed in 1855-56. This was an adobe structure with wood-shingled
roof.

36. Quartermaster's Shops. This is the site of the blacksmith, wheel-wright, and carpenter's shops for
the quartermaster depot. The three-room, wood-shingled adobe structure was built in late 1857 or early
1858.

37. Mule Corral and Hay Storage. These adobe-walled corrals were built by hired Indian 1abor.

38.  Company Stable. The structure on this site may have been the first stable constructed. It was build
of wooden slabs set upright in mud sill with a canvas roof. This stable built in 1854, was noted as having a
rotten canvas roof in 1857, and as wood-shingled in 1859.

39. Stable. This wood-framed planked and wood-shingled stable was probably built in 1857.

40. Company Granary and Saddle (Tack) Room, This building was a small wood-framed, wood-
shingled structure. It was used for grain and saddle and tack storage. The building was probably the work
site for the company saddler(s). A saddler was responsible for maintaining and repairing saddles and other
horse gear .He also supervised the storage of like equipment. When two companies were present, it
appears that both saddlers used the facility.

41.  Company Blacksmith/Shop. Each company of mounted troops had an enlisted specialist called a
"farrier/blacksmith" who was responsible for shoeing and fitting spare shoes for the company's horses.
There are currently no known descriptions of this building. However, the interior would have been similar
to any small black-smith shop of the period.

42. Sutlery and Overland Mail. This is the approximate site of two or more structures. The two main
buildings were adobe and are noted as the only hard-finished (plastered inside and outside) structures
associated with the post. The sutlery was started by Phineas T. Banning of San Pedro and operated by
George C. Alexander, who took over as the licensed sutler, or post trader, of Fort Tejon in 1856.'This was
also the Overland Mail Company station, post office, justice court, and, after October 1860, probably the
telegraph office.
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Fort Tejon Map

Drawn by Colonel Joseph K. F. Mansfield,
Department of the Inspector General
on February 1859.
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